2007

# Greg Anderson v. T. Richard Davis : Brief of Appellant

Utah Court of Appeals

### **JURISDICTION**

This appeal is in regards to a Memorandum Decision and Order from Third District Court. The Memorandum Decision and Order was rendered by Judge Toomey. This court has jurisdiction pursuant to [Utah Code Ann §78-2-2(3)(j)] (1953 as amended)

### **STATEMENT OF THE ISSUES**

**( a) That the statute of limitations for written contracts in Utah is 6 years, and it begins to run as soon as a person is capable of maintaining an action.**

*Fredericksen v. Knight Land Corp.*, 667 P.2d 34 (Utah 1983) *Lipscomb v. Chilton* 793 P.2d 379 (Utah 1990) *Cooper v. Deseret Federal Sav. and Loan* 757 P. 2d. 483 (Utah App 1988) *F.M.A. Fin Corp. v. Build, Inc.*, 17 Utah 2d 80, 404 P.2d 670, 673 (1965). *Clarke v. Living Scriptures, Inc.* 114 P.3d 602 (Utah App 2005)

**Standard of Review: Matter of Law:** The standard of review for when the statute of limitations expires is a question of law which is reviewed for correctness: *Quick Safe-T Hitch, Inc v. RSB Sys. L.C.* 2000 Ut 84 ¶ 10, 12 P. 3d 577; also see *State v. Lusk* 2001 UT 102, ¶ 11, 37, P.3d 1103.

**(b) That an acceleration clause in a written contract, at best would add one month to the six year statute of limitations in a written contract that has an optional acceleration clause.** *Fredericksen v. Knight Land Corp.*, 667 P.2d 34 (Utah 1983) *Lipscomb v. Chilton* 793 P.2d 379 (Utah 1990) *Cooper v. Deseret Federal Sav. and Loan* 757 P. 2d. 483 (Utah App 1988) *F.M.A. Fin Corp. v. Build, Inc.*, 17 Utah 2d 80, 404 P.2d 670, 673 (1965).

**Standard of Review: Matter of Law:** The standard of review for when the statute of limitations expires is a question of law which is reviewed for correctness: *Quick Safe-T Hitch, Inc v. RSB Sys. L.C.* 2000 Ut 84 ¶ 10, 12 P. 3d 577; also see *State v. Lusk* 2001 UT 102, ¶ 11, 37, P.3d 1103.

**( c) That if under Utah Law, an optional acceleration clause gives a beneficiary of a trust deed additional time beyond the six year period for contracts**

**in writing, that additional time would not apply to 3<sup>rd</sup> parties who have not formally assumed the liabilities of the trust deed note. *Taylor Bros. Co. V. Duden et at.***

(Supreme Court of Utah Jan 27, 1948) 188 P.2d 995, See also *Graves v. Seifried*, 31 Utah 203, 87 p 674; *Boucofaki v. Jacobsen*, 36 Utah 165, 104 P. 117, 26 L.R.A., N.S, 898.

**Standard of Review: Matter of Law:** The standard of review for when the statute of limitations begins to accrue is a question of law which is reviewed for correctness: *Quick Safe-T Hitch, Inc v. RSB Sys. L.C.* 2000 Ut 84 ¶ 10, 12 P. 3d 577; also see *State v. Lusk* 2001 UT 102, ¶ 11, 37, P.3d 1103.

**(d) That a trustee has a duty to all people with a equity position in a property in which he has an official position as a trustee on a deed of trust.**

**Standard of Review: Matter of Law:** *Blodgett v. Martsch* 590 P.2d 298 (Utah 1978), *Winters v. Schulman*, 977 P.2d 1218 (Utah 1999 App), certiorari denied 994 P.2d 1271.

**(e) That a Trustee has a duty to check the applicable law of the statute of limitations, before foreclosing on a persons property.**

**Standard of Review: Matter of Law:** *Blodgett v. Martsch* 590 P.2d 298 (Utah 1978), *Winters v. Schulman*, 977 P.2d 1218 (Utah 1999 App), certiorari denied 994 P.2d 1271.

**(f) That a notice of default filed on an owners property where 8 ½ years have passed since the last payment was made, and that trustee was given**



**written notice that the notice of default does constitutes a wrongful lien; trustee is liable to the property owner for treble damages pursuant to Utah Code.**

**Standard of Review: Matter of Law:** *Blodgett v. Martsch* 590 P.2d 298 (Utah 1998), *Winters v. Schulman*, 977 P.2d 1218 (Utah 1999 App), certiorari denied 994 P.2d 1271.

**(g) That defendant T. Richard has personal knowledge that the statute of limitations in the state of Utah for written contracts is six years, which includes contracts with acceleration clauses, inasmuch as he unsuccessfully litigated, *Fredericksen v. Knight Land Corp.*, 667 P.2d 34 (Utah 1983) a detailed statute of limitations case, in front of the Utah Supreme Court.**

**Standard of Review: The Court accepts the factual allegations in the complaint as true and consider all reasonable inferences to be drawn from those facts in a light most favorable to the plaintiff.”** *Ramsey v. Hancock*, 2003 UT App 319, ¶ 1, 79 P.3d 423.

**(h) That judge Toomey erred by stating that:**

“Thus, as a vendee, the Plaintiff has standing to assert the same defense to the obligation that Carman, LLC could have asserted, but has no rights or defenses greater that the debtor merely by virtue of his status as a vendee.”

**Standard of Review: Matter of Law:** *Taylor Bros. Co. V. Duden et at.*

(Supreme Court of Utah Jan 27, 1948) 188 P.2d 995, 996. See also *Graves v. Seifried*, 31 Utah 203, 87 p 674; *Boucofaki v. Jacobsen*, 36 Utah 165, 104 P. 117, 26 L.R.A., N.S,

898.

**(i) Judge Toomey erred when she stated:**

“In Utah, when an obligation is met by installment payments, the statute of limitations generally begins to run on each defaulted payment as they come due.”

**Standard of Review: Matter of Law:** *Fredericksen v. Knight Land Corp.*, 667 P.2d 34 (Utah 1983) *Lipscomb v. Chilton* 793 P.2d 379 (Utah 1990) *Cooper v. Deseret Federal Sav. and Loan* 757 P. 2d. 483 (Utah App 1988) *F.M.A. Fin Corp. v. Build, Inc.*, 17 Utah 2d 80, 404 P.2d 670, 673 (1965)

**(j) Judge Toomey erred when she stated:**

The court of appeals has since interpreted Johnson as adopting the rule used in the majority of jurisdictions on governing installment contracts.

**Standard of Review: Matter of Law:** *Fredericksen v. Knight Land Corp.*, 667 P.2d 34 (Utah 1983) *Lipscomb v. Chilton* 793 P.2d 379 (Utah 1990) *Cooper v. Deseret Federal Sav. and Loan* 757 P. 2d. 483 (Utah App 1988) *F.M.A. Fin Corp. v. Build, Inc.*, 17 Utah 2d 80, 404 P.2d 670, 673 (1965)

Judge Toomey used *Nilsen Newey & Co. v. Utah Resources Intern*, 905 P.2d 312 (Utah App. 1995) as her source for her above statement. *Nilson Newey & Co. v. Utah Resources Intern.*, is a case where the trial court dismissed plaintiff’s complaint on laches, and it was affirmed by the Court of appeals on that basis. In *Nilson Newey*, Plaintiffs lost, they did not win, so it could not have been adopted by the Court of Appeals.

**(k) Judge Toomey erred when she stated:**

“Although the Plaintiff argues that “It does not matter whether or not the contract is an installment contract or a contract with one payment,” none of the cases he cited supports his assertion.”

Plaintiff cited: *Fredericksen v. Knight Land Corp.*, 667 P.2d 34 (Utah 1983)

Plaintiff's Reply Memo filed May 23, 2007, page 5) also see: *Lipscomb v. Chilton* 793 P.2d 379 (Utah 1990), *Cooper v. Deseret Federal Sav. and Loan* 757 P. 2d. 483 (Utah App 1988), *F.M.A. Fin Corp. v. Build, Inc.*, 17 Utah 2d 80, 404 P.2d 670, 673 (1965).

**Standard of Review:** Matter of Law, and the Court accepts the factual allegations in the complaint as true and considers all reasonable inferences to be drawn from those facts in a light most favorable to the plaintiff.” *Ramsey v. Hancock*, 2003 UT App 319, ¶ 1, 79 P.3d 423.

**(l) Judge Toomey erred when she stated:**

“Because the Plaintiff has not cited any case supporting his argument that “It does not matter whether or not the contract is an installment contract or a contract with one payment,” the Court will apply the long-standing rule that causes of action generally accrue for each missed installment at the time the obligor defaults on that obligation, but does not accrue on future installments until the obligations on those installments are breached.”

Plaintiff cited: *Fredericksen v. Knight Land Corp.*, 667 P.2d 34 (Utah 1983), (Plaintiff's Reply Memo filed May 23, 2007, page 5). See *Graves v. Seifried*, 31 Utah (1906) 203, 87 p 674; *Boucofaki v. Jacobsen*, 36 Utah 165, 104 P. 117.

**Standard of Review:** Matter of Law, and the Court accepts the factual allegations in the complaint as true and consider all reasonable inferences to be drawn from those facts

in a light most favorable to the plaintiff.” *Ramsey v. Hancock*, 2003 UT App 319, ¶ 1, 79 P.3d 423.

**(m) Judge Toomey erred when she stated:**

. . . . . “the Court has not found a Utah case that directly considers the impact of an optional acceleration clause upon the accrual of a cause of action on an installment contract.”

Plaintiff pointed out *Fredericksen v. Knight Land Corp.*, 667 P.2d 34 (Utah 1983) in District Court, a case which Defendant took to the Utah Supreme Court, and the case states that the statute of limitations accrues when a complete cause of action arises. The case also states that the courts may presume from the lapse of an unreasonable time that a demand was made and refused. Also see *Lipscomb v. Chilton* 793 P.2d 379 (Utah 1990) *Cooper v. Deseret Federal Sav. And Loan* 757 P.2d 483 (Utah app. 1988).

**Standard of Review: Matter of Law:** *Fredericksen v. Knight Land Corp.*, 667 P.2d 34 (Utah 1983) *Lipscomb v. Chilton* 793 P.2d 379 (Utah 1990) *Cooper v. Deseret Federal Sav. and Loan* 757 P. 2d. 483 (Utah App 1988) *F.M.A. Fin Corp. v. Build, Inc.*, 17 Utah 2d 80, 404 P.2d 670, 673 (1965)

**(n) Judge Toomey erred when she stated**

“Mr. Simmons forbearance should not be penalized by applying the statute of limitations to the date that Carman defaulted on its installments. The statute of limitations began to run from the date that the last part of Carman, LLC’s performance was due, June 1, 2006.”

In Utah an optional acceleration clause, may possible give a Beneficiary an extra month to foreclose, which plaintiff pointed out in District Court. See *Fredericksen v.*

*Knight Land Corp.*, 667 P.2d 34 (Utah 1983) a case which Defendant took to the Utah Supreme Court, and the case states that the statute of limitations accrues when a complete cause of action arises. Also see *Lipscomb v. Chilton* 793 P.2d 379 (Utah 1990) *Cooper v. Deseret Federal Sav. And Loan* 757 P.2d 483 (Utah app. 1988).

**Standard of Review: Matter of Law:** *Fredericksen v. Knight Land Corp.*, 667 P.2d 34 (Utah 1983), *Lipscomb v. Chilton* 793 P.2d 379 (Utah 1990), *Cooper v. Deseret Federal Sav. and Loan* 757 P. 2d. 483 (Utah App 1988), *F.M.A. Fin Corp. v. Build, Inc.*, 17 Utah 2d 80, 404 P.2d 670, 673 (1965),

(o) **Sanctions:** Defendant T. Richard Davis made several statements in his memorandums that he knew were untrue when they were made. The statements were made to defraud plaintiff, and to confuse the court. Defendant Davis as a trustee had a duty to plaintiff pursuant to: *Blodgett v. Martsch* 590 P.2d 298 (Utah 1998). Defendant Davis had a duty to the court not to mislead the court pursuant to Rule 3.3. Candor Toward the Tribunal, Supreme Court Rules of Professional Practice, and Rule 4.1. Truthful in Statements to Others. ( a) Make a false statement of material fact or law to a third person; . . . Supreme Court Rules of Professional Practice

**Standard of Review: Matter of Law, and a decision by the court as to the facts:** U.C.A. § 25-5-1 (1953 as amended) *Cady v. Johnson* 671 P. 2d 149 Utah 1983). The claim or claims must be (1) without merit, (2) and lacking in good faith.

(p) **Impeachment:** Defendant's memorandums should have been

impeached pursuant to issues discussed above, and in this brief. *Schocker v. Milton O. Bitner Co.*, 30 Utah 2d 173, 176, 514 P.2d 1290,1292 (1973) *Utah R.Evid.* 801(d)(1)(A). **Standard of Review:** a matter of fact to be tried by the trier of fact *Cady v. Johnson* 671 P.2d 149 (Utah 1983)

#### **(q) Constructive Fraud**

The court should have found that Defendant Constructively Defrauded plaintiff

**Standard of Review:** . . . constructive fraud is an equitable doctrine employed by the courts to rectify injury resulting from breach of obligations implicit in the relationship. *Blodgett v. Martsch*, 590 P.2d 298, 302 (Utah 1978), *Blodgett* further explained that “[o]bviously, a trust deed trustee may not . . . defraud a trustor.” *First Security Bank of Utah N.A. v. Banberry Crossing*; 780P.2d 1253 (Utah 1989)” (page 108 footnote 4, *Five F., L.L.C. v. Heritage Savings Bank* 81 P.3d 105 (Utah App. 2003)) In Utah “every contract is subject to an implied covenant of good faith,” *Brehany v. Nordstrom*, 812 P.2d 49, 50 (Utah 1991) .

#### **(r) Breach of Fiduciary Duty**

Inasmuch as Defendant knew that he could not legally sell Plaintiff’s property because he was rebuked by the Supreme Court and knew the statute of limitations law, he had a fiduciary duty to Plaintiff, but chose to sell plaintiff’s property to satisfy his personal ambition and greed.

**Standard of Review:** Breach of Fiduciary Duty is a question for the trier of

fact, unless the circumstances are reason for a directed verdict. *In Blodgett v. Martsch*, 590 P.2d 298, 302 (Utah 1978) *Five F., L.L.C. v. Heritage Savings Bank* 81 P.3d 105 (Utah App. 2003)

## **DETERMINATIVE STATUTES and RULES**

### **§ 78-12-23. Within six years—Mesne profits of real property—Instrument in writing.**

**An action may be brought within six years:**

- (1) for the mesne profits of real property;
- (2) upon any contract, obligation or liability founded upon an instrument in writing, except those mentioned in Section 78-12-22.

### **§ 38-9-4. Civil liability for filing wrongful lien—Damages:**

(1) A lien claimant who records or files or causes a wrongful lien as defined in Section 38-9-1 to be recorded or filed in the office of the county recorder against real property is liable to a record interest holder for any actual damages proximately caused by the wrongful lien.

(2) If the person in violation of this Subsection (1) refuses to release or correct the wrongful lien within ten days from the date of written request from a record interest holder of the real property delivered personally or mailed to the last-known address of the lien claimant, the person is liable to that record interest holder for \$1,000 or for treble actual damages, whichever is greater, and for reasonable attorneys fees and costs.

(3) A person is liable to the record owner of real property for \$3,000 or for treble actual damages, whichever is greater, and for reasonable attorney fees and costs, who records or files or causes to be recorded or filed a wrongful lien as defined in Section 38-9-1 in the office of the county

recorder against the real property knowing or having reason to know that the document:

- (a) is a wrongful lien;
- (b) is groundless;
- (c) contains a material misstatement or false claim.

**§ 78-27-56 attorneys fees—Award where action or defense in bad faith—Exceptions.**

(1) In civil actions, the court shall award reasonable attorney's fee's to a prevailing party if the court determines that the action or defense to the action was without merit and not brought in good faith, . . . .

Plaintiff is entitled to attorneys fees's because there is no question that defendants defense was brought in bad faith, and is without merit because of defendants rebuke by the Supreme Court in *Fredricksen*.

**Utah Rules of Civil Procedure. Rule 11.**

**Signing of pleadings, motions, and other papers, representations to court; sanctions.**

(a) *Signature.* Every pleading, written motion, and other paper shall be signed by at least one attorney of record in the attorney's name, or if the party is not represented by an attorney, shall be signed by the party. Each paper shall state the signers address and telephone number, if any. Except when otherwise specifically provided by rule or statute, pleadings need not be verified or accompanied by affidavit. An unsigned paper shall be stricken unless omission of the signature is corrected promptly after being called to the attention of the attorney or party.

(b) Representation to the court. By presenting a pleading, written motion, or other paper to the court (whether by signing, filing, submitting, or later advocating), an attorney or unrepresented party is certifying that to the best of the person's knowledge, information, and belief, formed after an inquiry reasonable under the circumstances,



(b)(1) it is not being presented for any improper purpose, such as to harass or to cause unnecessary delay or needless increase in the cost of litigation;

(b)(2) the claims, defenses, and other legal contentions therein are warranted by existing law or by a non frivolous argument for the extension, modification, or reversal of existing law or the establishment of new law.

(b)(3) the allegations and other factual contentions have evidentiary support or, if specifically so identified, are likely to have evidentiary support after a reasonable opportunity for further investigation or discovery;

( c) *Sanctions.* If after notice and a reasonable opportunity to respond, the court determines that subdivision (b) has been violated, the court may, subject to the conditions stated below, *impose an appropriate sanction upon the attorneys, law firms, or parties that have violated subdivision (b) or are responsible for the violation.*

#### **[1] Preamble: A Lawyer's Responsibilities.**

[1] A lawyer is a representative of clients, an officer of the legal system and a public citizen having special responsibility to observe the law and the Rules of Professional Conduct, shall take the Attorneys Oath upon admission to the practice of law, and shall be subject to the Rules of Lawyer Discipline, and Disability.

#### **Attorney's Oath**

I do solemnly swear that I will support, obey and defend the Constitution of the United States and the Constitution of Utah; and that I will discharge the duties of attorney and counselor at law as an officer of the courts of this State with honesty and fidelity, and that I will strictly observe the Rules of Professional Conduct promulgated by the Supreme Court of the State of Utah.

#### **Rule 3.1 Meritorious Claims and Contentions**

A lawyer shall not bring or defend a proceeding, or assert or controvert an issue therein, unless there is a basis in law and fact for doing so that is not frivolous, . . . .

**Rule 3.3 Candor Toward the Tribunal.**

(a) A lawyer shall not knowingly:

(a)(1) make a false statement of material fact or law to a tribunal or fail to correct a false statement of material fact or law previously made to the tribunal by the lawyer,

(a)(3) offer evidence that the lawyer knows to be false. If a lawyer, the lawyers client or a witness called by the lawyer has offered material evidence and the lawyer comes to know of its falsity, the lawyer, shall take reasonable remedial measures, including, if necessary disclosure to the tribunal.

**Rule 4.1. Truthfulness in Statements to Others.**

In the course of representing a client a lawyer shall not knowingly:

(a) Make a false statement of material fact or law to a third person; . . .

**UTAH RULES OF EVIDENCE**

**Rule 601. General rule of competency.**

( c ) (2) Evidence of a statement is inadmissible under this section if the statement was made under circumstances such as to indicate its lack of trustworthiness.

**Rule 607. Who may impeach.**

The credibility of a witness may be attacked by any party, including the party calling the witness.

Rule 608 Evidence of bias. Bias, prejudice or any motive to misrepresent may be shown to impeach the witness either by examination of the witness or by evidence otherwise adduced.

## **STATEMENT OF THE CASE**

On or about May 10, 1996, Roy W. Simmons sold to Carman, LLC certain real property located at 136 East 2100 South in Salt Lake County, and received in connection with said sale a Trust Deed securing a debt in the amount of \$59,500. Carman LLC and/or Carolyn Manning made payments, the last of which was made on July 15, 1998. Appellant received his deed on the subject property via a Sheriff's deed, and was not a party to the original transaction between Carman LLC, and Roy W. Simmons. On November 8, 2006, Appellee filed a "Notice of Default" on Appellant's property. Appellee admits that on January 2, 2007, Appellee received a letter from Appellant demanding that he remove the "Notice of Default" within twenty days or that, "an action would be filed against him for treble damages" pursuant to §38-9-1, Utah Code. Instead of acknowledging his duties to Plaintiff as a Trustee, Defendant T. Richard Davis caused to have written a "Scam Memorandum," which was faxed to Plaintiff, in an obvious attempt to defraud Plaintiff of his property. Plaintiff should have been granted summary judgment by the District Court as follows: (1) that Defendants "Notice of Default" constitutes "Slander of Title", is a "Wrongful Lien" pursuant to §38-9-4-(3), and (2) that Defendants' actions amount to Constructive Fraud, (3) and that the statute of limitations in this action, is a six year statute that begins to accrue as to plaintiff, appellant in mid 1998, when the last payment was made by original trustor, as a matter of law. The fact of the matter is that there is a long-standing rule in Utah, and that rule is, that the statute of limitations accrues at the moment

that a cause of action arises.

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