2007

Greg Anderson v. T. Richard Davis : Brief of Appellee

Utah Court of Appeals

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

⁵ If default occurs in the payment of said installments of principal and interest or any part thereof, or in the performance of any agreement contained in the Trust Deed securing this note, the holder hereof, at its option and without notice or demand, may declare the entire principal balance and accrued interest due and payable. (R-68).

[a]n acceleration clause in a written contract, at best would add one month to the six year statute of limitations in a written contract that has on optional acceleration clause. . . . [i]f under Utah Law, an optional acceleration clause gives a beneficiary of a trust deed additional time beyond the six year period for contracts in writing, that additional time would not apply to 3rd parties who have not formally assumed the liabilities of the trust deed note.”

Appellant’s Brief, p. 33.

Anderson’s argument regarding the acceleration clause is confusing and incorrect. Neither Davis argued nor the trial court held that the acceleration clause was invoked, nor that the clause, if invoked, would have extended the statute of limitations until November 1, 2006 or later. (R-245 and 255-258). The trial court was persuaded by the holding in Navy Federal Credit Union v. Jones, 930 P.2d 1007 (Ariz. CT. App. 1996), declaring,

[t]his court is persuaded by the rule applied in Navy Federal Credit Union, and applies it to this case. One missed installment in the presence of an optional acceleration clause does not automatically start the statute of limitations for the remaining installments. The statute begins to run on future installments only if the creditor exercises the option.

(R-258). Simmons’ and his Successor Trustee had the choice whether to invoke the acceleration clause whenever Carman, LLC, missed an installment payment, or to wait and allow Carman, LLC to pay the balance with the last installment payment according to the explicit terms of the Trust Deed Note. It was only after Carman, LLC missed the final installment payment that the Davis decided to act upon the legal rights of foreclosure afforded to Simmons as holder of the Trust Deed Note. Moreover, the trial court also addressed Anderson’s argument that the contractual right to invoke the acceleration

clause and demand the remainder of the installments is equivalent to an accrued cause of action. (R-255-258). The trial court's analysis of Navy Federal Credit Union v. Jones, 930 P.2d 1007 (Ariz. CT. App. 1996) addressed and refuted Anderson's argument.

the majority rule that if the creditor opts to invoke the acceleration clause, then the statute of limitations runs as to future installments 'from the date the creditor exercises the acceleration clause.' The court explained that 'if the acceleration clause in a debt payable in installments is optional, a cause of action as to future non-delinquent installments does not accrue until the creditor chooses to take advantage of the clause and accelerate the balance.

(R-257)(internal citations omitted). The trial court's application of Navy Federal Credit Union is directly on point. Simmons and Davis did not exercise the optional acceleration clause during the period of the Trust Deed Note. Therefore the cause of action and relatedly, the start of the statute of limitations, for the missed final installment payment did not accrue until Carman, LLC failed to make the final installment payment, June 1, 2006. Therefore, based upon the trial court's determination that the applicable statute of limitations began to accrue on June 1, 2006, without any consideration of the acceleration clause in the Trust Deed Note, Davis requests this Court uphold the trial court's ruling.

III. ANDERSON'S ASSERTIONS REGARDING A TRUSTEE'S DUTIES WAS NEITHER INCLUDED IN ANDERSON'S COMPLAINT NOR IN ANDERSON'S MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT.

Anderson discusses and asserts certain duties that Davis should perform due to his role as Successor Trustee. See Appellant's Brief, pp. 34-37. Davis, as Successor Trustee, does have specific duties to specific groups of individuals, the trust beneficiaries and the trustor. See In re Hoopiaina Trust, 2006 UT 53 ¶ 30, 144 P.3d 1129. It is well settled

that [a] trust is a form of ownership in which the legal title to property is vested in a trustee, who has equitable duties to hold and manage it for the benefit of the beneficiaries. Anderson asserts that Davis owed some type of fiduciary duty to Anderson. See Appellant's Brief, pp. 34-37. Yet, Anderson fails to provide any case law supporting his assertion. Anderson is only a successor in interest to the trustor. As such, he has rights to the subject property, albeit limited. He does not, however, qualify as a beneficiary or even the trustor relative to a fiduciary duty from Davis as successor trustee.

However, despite the lack of a fiduciary relationship with Anderson, Davis at all times fulfilled his duties and demonstrated professionalism in his conduct with Anderson. Despite Anderson's aggressive, demeaning, and unprofessional attacks on Davis, Davis attempted to assist Anderson to understand what was occurring with the subject property and avoid a costly trial and appeal. In response to Anderson's letter, dated December 8, 2006⁶, Davis responded in writing attempted to explain the facts of the matter, strongly encouraged Anderson to obtain qualified legal counsel and offered to discuss the matter further. (R-93-94). Davis, in response to Anderson's letter dated March 20, 2007⁷, forwarded a research memorandum authored by Nathan Scharton, a lawyer of the law firm Callister Nebeker & McCullough. (R-35). The short memorandum provides a general and correct explanation to the issue of the case at bar. Despite the lack of a

⁶ (R-90).

⁷ (R-34)

fiduciary relationship, Davis accommodated Anderson regarding time and encouraged Anderson to seek competent legal counsel regarding this matter.

The trial court held that the case Anderson cites, Blodgett v. Martsch, 590 P.2d 298 (Utah 1978)⁸ simply holds that a trustee owes a fiduciary duty to the grantor and trust beneficiary. (R-262). The trial court further held that Davis, the Successor Trustee, “owes a fiduciary duty to the Roy Simmons estate (the successor to the beneficiary) and Carman, LLC (the Trustor). Despite what the trial court stated, Anderson still asserts that Davis owed Anderson a “special duty” and that Davis was “a prime example of a trustee who is unprotective of borrowers. See Appellant’s Brief, pp. 34-35. However, a trustee’s duties and obligations have been outlined by this Court.

A trustee's primary obligation is to assure the payment of the debt secured by the trust deed. See Five F, L.L.C. v. Heritage Sav. Bank, 2003 UT App 373, ¶¶ 13-15, 81 P.3d 105. In certain circumstances, however “it is possible that the trustee is bound by a fiduciary duty to act in the interest of the trustor.” First Sec. Bank of Utah, N.A. v. Banberry Crossing, 780 P.2d 1253, 1256 (Utah 1989). . . .

While a trustee's primary duty and obligation is to the beneficiary of the trust, ““the trustee's duty to the beneficiary does not imply that the trustee may ignore the trustor's rights and interests.’ ” Five F, L.L.C., 2003 UT App at ¶ 17 (quoting Banberry Crossing, 780 P.2d at 1256). Rather, a trustee has a duty “ ‘to act with reasonable diligence and good faith on [the trustor's] behalf consistent with [the trustee's] primary obligation to assure payment of the secured debt.’ ” *Id.* at ¶ 14 (alterations in original) (quoting Blodgett, 590 P.2d at 303).

⁸ In Appellant’s Brief, p. 34 and (R-27).

Russell v. Lundberg, 2005 UT App 315 ¶¶ 19 and 22, 120 P.3d 541. It would be inappropriate and a likely conflict of interest if Davis treated Anderson as Anderson demands. Davis' duty was to the beneficiaries and the Estate of Roy Simmons. It is clear that the interest of the beneficiaries and the estate of Roy Simmons are in conflict with the interest of Anderson. Davis did precisely what he was supposed to do. Moreover, Anderson has not supported one of his allegations of Davis' failing to perform in maintaining his fiduciary duties.

Anderson did not plead a breach of fiduciary or any other duty by Davis. (R-1-8). Anderson did complain of "constructive fraud" based in part upon Davis' alleged duties to Anderson (R-5-6). In Anderson's Memorandum in Support of his Motion for Summary Judgment, Anderson asserted that Davis had a duty not only to the beneficiary but also to the trustor, implying that Anderson was a trustor. (R-27). However, the trial court held, Davis "does not owe a fiduciary duty to an interest-holder in secured collateral. Successor Trustee holds no confidential relationship with [Anderson]. (R-268). Due to the lack of a confidential relationship between Anderson and Davis, Anderson cannot establish and has not established any element in the cause of action of constructive fraud.

IV. THE TRIAL COURT CORRECTLY HELD THAT THE NOTICE OF DEFAULT FILED BY DAVIS DID NOT CONSTITUTE A WRONGFUL LIEN.

Anderson alleged that the Notice of Default, recorded by Davis, on the subject property on December 29, 2006, constituted a wrongful lien pursuant to Utah's Wrongful

Lien Act. (R-3-4 and Appellant's Brief, p. 37). Anderson further alleges that the Notice of Default is wrongful because the Trust Deed Note "has been paid, and/or the statute of limitations has run." Id. However, the Notice of Default is not a lien, it does nothing more than declare that a default exists in the repayment obligation secured by a properly filed Trust Deed Note. The Notice of Default is not a wrongful lien pursuant to Utah's statute.⁹

Anderson cites to Commercial Inv. Corp v. Siggard, 936 P.2d 1105 (Utah Ct. App. 1997) and attempts to analyze the Commercial Investors facts in his Brief. See Appellant's Brief, p. 38-39. In Commercial Investors, the court was considering a **Notice of Interest** that should have covered a smaller portion of the subject property than it listed. Anderson misunderstands those facts and derives from that case the notion that the Notice of Default (not Notice of Interest), as filed by Davis, creates a lien or an encumbrance on the subject real property unauthorized by law. However, the trial court held that because Simmons retained "a valid security interest in the real property at issue, and Carman, LLC had breached its obligations secured therefore, [Davis] was authorized to file the Notice [of Default] under Utah Code Ann. § 57-1-23 (2006). (R-261). Davis

⁹ A wrongful lien is defined in section 38-9-1(6):
"Wrongful lien" means any document that purports to create a lien or encumbrance on an owner's interest in certain real property and at the time it is recorded or filed is not:
(a) expressly authorized by this chapter or another state or federal statute;
(b) authorized by or contained in an order or judgment of a court of competent jurisdiction in the state; or
(c) signed by or authorized pursuant to a document signed by the owner of the real property.
UTAH CODE ANN. § 38-9-1(6).

fulfilled his duty to provide notice of the debtor's default and the upcoming sale of the Property as prescribed in UTAH CODE ANN. § 57-1-26 *et seq.* The Notice of Default only provides notice that the Trust Deed Note, secured by a previously filed trust deed, is in a condition of default. A Notice of Interest, as considered in Commercial Investors gives notice of a *new* interest in the property. A Notice of Default and a Notice of Interest are very different.

Neither the Trust Deed nor the Notice of Default constitute a wrongful lien under Utah's Wrongful Lien Act nor wrongfully cloud the title in any way. Importantly, Anderson purchased the Property subject to Simmons' duly executed, acknowledged, certified and recorded lien. See UTAH CODE ANN. § 57-3-102. The Trust Deed was recorded on September 10, 1996, several years prior to Anderson's purchase of the property and enjoyed superior priority to Anderson's claims to the subject property. See Homeside Lending v. Miller, 2001 UT App 247, ¶ 17, 31 P.3d 607 (normally, competing interests in land have priority in order of their creation in point of time, following the general rule . . . first in time, superior in right). There is no dispute that the Trust Deed's lien was duly recorded pursuant to the requirements outlined in Utah statutes. There is no dispute that the Trust Deed's lien has priority to Anderson's purchase. Moreover, reasonable minds cannot differ that there was still an outstanding balance on the Trust Deed Note. (R-137 and 141) and UTAH CODE ANN. § 57-1-40.

Anderson's claim that the statute of limitations makes the Notice of Default a wrongful lien is erroneous. As presented above, Davis and Simmons acted well within

the applicable statute of limitations and could lawfully pursue the foreclosure proceeding. The trial court correctly held that the Notice of Default was “‘expressly authorized’ by the Utah Code, and does not fall within the definition of a wrongful lien. Utah Code Ann. § 38-9-1(6).” (R-261).

V. **THE COURT CORRECTLY DENIED ANDERSON’S MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT IN THAT ANDERSON FAILED TO ESTABLISH THE ELEMENTS OF CONSTRUCTIVE FRAUD.**

To establish his claim of constructive fraud against Davis, Anderson was required to establish, “two elements: (i) a confidential relationship between the parties; and (ii) a failure to disclose material facts. d’Elia v. Rice Development, Inc., 2006 UT App 416, ¶ 51, 147 P.3d 515 (citing Jensen v. IHC Hospitals, 944 P.2d 327, 339 (Utah 1997)). Anderson failed to establish either of the two elements necessary for constructive fraud. Anderson and Davis do not share a confidential relationship, nor had Davis failed to disclose any material facts to Anderson. Additionally, the only entity to gain from the foreclosure of the property were the beneficiaries. As stated above, Davis’ basic duty was to the beneficiaries of the trust deed and not to a successor in interest to the owner of the property.

Anderson asserted that Davis owed him certain duties similar in that from a trustee to a trustor. (R-5); Appellant’s Brief, p. 47-49. Anderson’s allegations fail to establish either a confidential relationship with Davis or that Davis has failed to provide any information or facts, material or other. (R-148 and 262-263). Anderson cites to First Security Bank of Utah N.A. v. Banberry Crossing, 780 P.2d 1253 (Utah 1989) and

Blodgett v. Martsch, 590 P.2d 298, 302 (Utah 1978) quoting that “a trust deed trustee may not . . . defraud a trustor.” See Appellant’s Brief, p. 47. Anderson fails to establish that he is a trustor, relative to the subject property that Davis is the trust deed successor trustee. Additionally, Anderson states, “[t]he fact of the matter is that defendant T. Richard Davis just claimed to be a trustee, but in reality was not because the statute of limitations ran.” See Appellant’s Brief, p. 47-48. Not only does Anderson fail to establish the necessary relationship, but in places within his brief, even denies that Davis is a trustee.

Davis, in his role as Successor Trustee, has complied with all duties that he may have had with Anderson in that “he has honored that duty by complying with the notice statutes governing trustee sales.” (R-263). Moreover, Davis offered to meet with Anderson and his counsel to discuss the foreclosure proceedings. (R-94). Davis offered to attend an emergency hearing with the court, if Anderson requested such a hearing, to resolve Anderson’s concerns. (R-95). Davis forwarded a copy of the Note and Trust Deed to Anderson for his review. Davis encourage Anderson to seek qualified counsel. Davis had no further duty to Anderson.

VI. THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ADDRESS ISSUES OF SANCTIONS AGAINST DAVIS AND IMPEACHMENT

Anderson includes arguments for sanctions¹⁰ against Davis and impeachment¹¹ of Davis' memoranda filed with the trial court covering the Cross-Summary Judgment Motions. However, neither issue of sanctions nor the issues of impeachment was included in Anderson's Complaint or Memorandum in Support of his Motion for Summary Judgment, neither were they ruled on by the trial court.

This Court does not have the jurisdiction to decide issues raised for the first time on appeal. Anderson now attempts to raise these issues for the first time on appeal. The trial court did not make any determination as to the issues of sanctions and impeachment. Therefore, Anderson is barred from raising these issue on appeal because it was neither argued nor determined below. See State v. Richins, 2004 UT App 36, ¶ 8, 86 P.3d 759 (“In order to preserve an issue for appeal, it . . . must be specifically raised such that the issue is sufficiently raised to a level of consciousness before the trial court, and must be supported by evidence or relevant legal authority.”); Timm v. Dewsnup, 2003 UT 47, ¶ 39, 86 P.3d 699 (The court “will review issues raised for the first time on appeal only if exceptional circumstances or “plain error” exists.”). See Heideman v. Washington City, 2007 UT App 11, ¶ 15, 155 P.3d 900.

¹⁰ See Appellant's Brief, pp. 43-47 and (R-223-243).

¹¹ See Appellant's Brief, p. 47 and (R-199-211).

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